
NOTICE

OF

MEETING

WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT 
MANAGEMENT PANEL

will meet on

WEDNESDAY, 28TH JUNE, 2017

At 7.00 pm

in the

COUNCIL CHAMBER - GUILDHALL, WINDSOR

TO: MEMBERS OF THE WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

COUNCILLORS DR LILLY EVANS (CHAIRMAN), COLIN RAYNER (VICE-CHAIRMAN), 
MICHAEL AIREY, CHRISTINE BATESON, DAVID HILTON, JOHN LENTON, 
JULIAN SHARPE, LYNDA YONG AND MALCOLM BEER 

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
COUNCILLORS JOHN BOWDEN, SAYONARA LUXTON, NICOLA PRYER, 
EILEEN QUICK, JACK RANKIN, WESLEY RICHARDS, SAMANTHA RAYNER, 
JOHN STORY, WISDOM DA COSTA, LYNNE JONES AND SIMON WERNER

Karen Shepherd - Democratic Services Manager - Issued: Tuesday, 20 June 2017

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Andy Carswell 01628 796319

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly 
by the nearest exit.  Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts.  Congregate outside and do 
not re-enter the building until told to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings – The Council allows the filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings. This 
may be undertaken by the Council itself, or any person attending the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are 
acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be available for public viewing on 
the RBWM website. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic 
Services or Legal representative at the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


AGENDA

PART I
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any Declarations of Interest.
 

5 - 6

3.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

To confirm the Part I Minutes of the meeting of the previous meeting
 

7 - 8

4.  PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

To consider the Director of Development & Regeneration / Development 
Control Manager’s report on planning applications received.

Full details on all planning applications (including application forms, site 
plans, objections received, correspondence etc.) can be found by accessing 
the Planning Applications Public Access Module by selecting the following 
link. http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp or from Democratic Services on 
01628 796251 or democratic.services@rbwm.gov.uk 
 

9 - 28

5.  ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

To consider the Essential Monitoring Reports.
 

29 - 34

6.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

To consider passing the following resolution:-
 

“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion 
takes place on item 7 on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I 
of Schedule 12A of the Act."
 

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp
mailto:democratic.services@rbwm.gov.uk


PART II

ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 
NO

7.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

To approve the Part II minutes of the previous meeting.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

35 - 36





 
MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS  

 
Disclosure at Meetings 
 
If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a DPI or Prejudicial 
Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest in their Register of Interests they are still required to 
disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.   
 
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the item but must not 
take part in discussion or vote at a meeting. The term ‘discussion’ means a discussion by the members of 
meeting.  In order to avoid any accusations of taking part in the discussion or vote, Members should move to 
the public area or leave the room once they have made any representations.  If the interest declared has not 
been entered on to a Members’ Register of Interests, they must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within the 
next 28 days following the meeting.  

 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (relating to the Member or their partner) include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any expenses occurred in 
carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has not been 
fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any licence to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued 
share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class belonging to the 
relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek advice 
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting. 
 
A Member with a DPI should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations on the item: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x because xxx. 
As soon as we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the 
public area for the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Prejudicial Interests 
 
Any interest which a reasonable, fair minded and informed member of the public would reasonably believe is so 
significant that it harms or impairs the Member’s ability to judge the public interest in the item, i.e. a Member’s 
decision making is influenced by their interest so that they are not able to impartially consider relevant issues.   
 
A Member with a Prejudicial interest should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations in the item: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x because xxx. As soon as 
we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the public area for 
the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Personal interests 
 
Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably think may influence a 
Member when making a decision on council matters.  
 

Members with a Personal Interest should state at the meeting: ‘I wish to declare a Personal Interest in item x 
because xxx’. As this is a Personal Interest only, I will take part in the discussion and vote on the 
matter. 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

WEDNESDAY, 3 MAY 2017

PRESENT: Councillors Dr Lilly Evans (Chairman), Colin Rayner (Vice-Chairman), 
Malcolm Beer, David Hilton, John Lenton, Michael Airey, Lynda Yong and 
Julian Sharpe

Also in attendance: Councillor Derek Wilson

Officers: Mary Kilner, Andy Carswell, Melvin Andrews, Adam Jackson and Jenifer 
Jackson

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Cllr Bateson.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Cllr Rayner – Declared a personal interest in item 16/03275 as he knew some of the 
objectors and knew of the application site.

Cllr Lenton – Declared a prejudicial interest in item 16/03275 due to the wording of his call-in 
on the item potentially being deemed as prejudicial and a pre-determination. He stated that he 
had not been present at the meeting of Wraysbury Parish Council when the item had been 
discussed previously. Cllr Lenton stated that although he would speak on the item, he would 
not participate in the vote.

MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on April 5th were agreed as an accurate record.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION) 

NB: *Updates were received in relation to planning applications marked with an asterisk.

16/02052 Mr Tobutt: Erection of assisted living development with associated works at 
Stone Court, London Road, Sunningdale, Ascot SL5 9RY – The item was 
withdrawn from the agenda.

16/03275* FPC (Wraybury) Ltd: Change of use from car sales showroom and repair and 
servicing workshop (sui generis/B2) to shop (A1), including extension and 
alterations together with associated access, parking and refuse storage, 
following demolition of one of the existing buildings and canopy at Concord 
Garage, 31 Windsor Road, Wraysbury, Staines TW19 5DE – THE PANEL 
VOTED to DEFER AND DELEGATE the application to Planning Officers to 
discuss with the applicant the appearance of the proposed building and 
ensuring it was more in keeping with the immediate area, and to confirm 
details of separating the site from the brook behind it, with a view to 
granting APPROVAL under delegated powers.

(Six Councillors (Cllrs Airey, Beer, Hilton, Sharpe, Yong and Dr Evans) voted in 
favour of the motion and one (Cllr Rayner) voted against it. Cllr Lenton did not 
take part in the vote.)

7

Agenda Item 3



(The Panel was addressed by Henry Perez and Graham Cribbin in opposition 
to the application, Andrew Moran of Wraysbury Parish Council in opposition, 
and by Jeremy Heppell, the agent, in support of the application.)

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING) 

The contents of the report were noted by the Panel. Cllr Hilton suggested that submissions 
should be made to the Planning Inspectorate in respect of appeal 17/60039/REF.

Cllr Rayner left the meeting at 8.10pm.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

RESOLVED UNAIMOUSLY: That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion takes 
place on item 7 on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of Schedule 12A of the Act.

The meeting, which began at 7.00 pm, finished at 8.45 pm

CHAIRMAN……………………………….

DATE………………………………..........

8



AGLIST

ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD

Windsor Rural Panel

28th June 2017

INDEX

APP = Approval

CLU = Certificate of Lawful Use

DD = Defer and Delegate

DLA = Defer Legal Agreement

PERM = Permit

PNR = Prior Approval Not Required

REF = Refusal

WA = Would Have Approved

WR = Would Have Refused

Item No. 1 Application No. 17/01066/VAR Recommendation DLA Page No.

Location: The Little House  Charters Road Sunningdale Ascot SL5 9QF

Proposal: Redevelopment of site to provide 6 x 3 bedroom apartments under planning permission 15/03090 (allowed on 
appeal) without complying with condition 2 (approved plans) to substitute approved drawings 

Applicant: Kebbell  Homes Ltd Member Call-in: Not applicable Expiry Date: 1 August 2017
___________________________________________________________________________________

9

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD
PLANNING COMMITTEE

WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

28 June 2017 Item:  1
Application 
No.:

17/01066/VAR

Location: The Little House  Charters Road Sunningdale Ascot SL5 9QF
Proposal: Redevelopment of site to provide 6 x 3 bedroom apartments under planning 

permission 15/03090 (allowed on appeal) without complying with condition 2 (approved 
plans) to substitute approved drawings  

Applicant: Kebbell  Homes Ltd
Agent: Christopher Pickering
Parish/Ward: Sunningdale Parish/Sunningdale Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact:  Vivienne McDowell on 01628 796578 or at 
vivienne.mcdowell@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 This application is essentially an amendment to 15/03090 (allowed on appeal).  The application 
seeks to vary the approved plans listed in condition 2 of the decision notice.  

1.2 This current application maintains the same general  layout of that approved under 15/03090  i.e. 
an apartment building and 2 detached garages and surface car parking.  However, this current 
application proposes an apartment building of a very similar above-ground design and 
proportions  to that approved under 16/01680.  The current application also proposes minor 
changes to the design of the garage roofs. 

1.3 The applicants have submitted amended plans (P140 Rev A, P135 Rev A, P160 and P200 Rev A 
- received 12 June 2017) to accurately show the proposed roof lights in the side elevations 
serving kitchen/dining/living area, to show a smaller first floor side en-suite bathrooms windows 
and a reduction in the angle of pitch on the garage roofs so as to provide a fully hipped roof 
without a crown.  The applicants have also submitted an amended layout (P050 Rev A -received 
12 June 2017) showing existing (Lime) trees on the frontage retained.

1.4 It is considered that the changes to the scheme proposed in this current application can be dealt 
with under a section 73 (variation) application. Furthermore, it is considered that the proposed 
scheme including recent amendments mentioned in paragraph 1.3 are acceptable.  

1.5 The applicant will need to submit a Deed of Variation to secure mitigation towards SAMM and 
SANG. 

 

It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions listed in 
Section 10 of this report.

It is recommended the Panel authorises the Head of Planning:
1.

To grant planning permission subject to the completion of a satisfactory Deed of Variation 
to secure SAMM and SANG mitigation. 

2.
To refuse planning permission if satisfactory Deed of Variation to secure SAMM and SANG 
mitigation is not received by the 31 July 2017.

11



2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

 The Council’s Constitution does not give the Head of Planning delegated powers to 
determine the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by the 
Panel.  

3. DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

3.1 The site is located on the northeast side of Charters Road almost opposite the junction with 
Sunning Avenue. The site formerly accommodated a 1½ storey high single family dwelling, with a 
detached garage and outbuilding. The site measures 0.262 hectares and is accessed by a 
driveway positioned opposite Sunning Avenue.  The site has been cleared of buildings. 

3.2 There are trees along the boundaries of the site including the front boundary.   There is currently 
good screening along the front boundary and a fence. The site is subject to an Area Tree 
Preservation Order (No 9 of 1984). 

3.3 The site lies within the excluded settlement of Sunningdale and its boundaries are surrounded by 
residential houses with a property on the opposite side of Charters Road being subdivided into 
flats. The site is within the townscape area described as ‘Leafy Residential Suburb’.  

4. DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

4.1 This current application is for 6 x 3-beroom apartments with 2 x double garages plus 8 parking 
car parking spaces within an open forecourt.  In total the application proposes 12 car parking 
spaces (4 within the garages).

Ref. Description Decision and Date
03/84272 Erection of ten 2-bed apartments with associated

parking and landscaping following demolition of 
existing dwelling

Refused 06/01/04
Appeal dismissed

04/84958 Erection of 8 x 2 bedroom flats following 
demolition of existing dwelling (revision of 
03/84272).

Withdrawn 04/08/04

12/00325 Construction of two detached houses and garages 
with access and landscaping following demolition 
of existing house and garage

Approved 03.04.2012

12/01490 Erection of 6 x 3 bedroom flats together with 
garages and a parking court following demolition 
of the existing building

Refused 20.07.2012
Appeal dismissed

Appeal A
12/01490

Erection of 6 x 3-bedoom flats with garages and a 
parking court following demolition of existing.

Refused 28.5.2015.
Appeal dismissed.

Appeal B
12/02720 

Erection of 6 x 3 bedroom flats together with 
basement parking following demolition of the 
existing building

Refused 03.10.2012
Appeal allowed

14/00118 Erection of 4 semi-detached dwellings with 
basements and associated amenity space 
following the demolition of the existing.

Approved 20.7.14

14/01846/FULL Construction of 4 x semi-detached dwellings with 
garages and associated amenity space.

Refused 21.8.2014.
Appeal allowed 
27.4.2015

14/02971/FULL Construction of 4 x semi-detached dwellings with 
garages and associated amenity space. 

Refused 11.11.2014
Appeal withdrawn.

12



Ref. Description Decision and 
Date

15/03090 Redevelopment of site to provide 6 x 3-bedroom 
apartments (with 2 garages on the frontage). 

Refused and 
allowed on 
appeal 28 Oct 
2016.

16/01680 6 x 3-bedroom apartments with basement parking. Allowed 2 August 
2016

17/00767 Variation to planning permission 12/02720- without 
complying with Condition 7 (tree protection) and 
Condition 17 (approved plans). 

Pending decision.

5. MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

5.1 National Planning Policy Framework, Paragraph 17 (Core principles), Section 2 (Ensuring vitality 
of towns), Section 6 (Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes), Section 7 (Requiring good 
design).

Royal Borough Local Plan

5.2 The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within 
settlement 

area
Protected 

Trees
Highways
/Parking 
issues

Local Plan DG1, H10, 
H11, H14

N6 T5, P4

Ascot, 
Sunninghill and 

Sunningdale 
Neighbourhood 

Plan

NP/EN4, 
NP/H2, 
NP/H3, 

NP/DG1, 
NP/DG2, 
NP/DG3,
NP/DG5,
NP/T1,
NP/T2

NP/EN2,
NP/EN3

NP/T1, 
NP/T2

These policies can be found at 
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices

Supplementary planning documents

5.3  Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

● Sustainable Design and Construction
● Planning for an Ageing Population
 

More information on these documents can be found at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp_supplementary_planning.htm

13

https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp_supplementary_planning.htm


Other Local Strategies or Publications

5.4 Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

● RBWM Landscape Character Assessment - view at: 
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm 

● RBWM Townscape Assessment - view at: 
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm

● RBWM Parking Strategy - view at: 
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm

More information on these documents can be found at: 
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planni
ng

6. EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

6.1 The key issues for consideration are:

i Impact on the character and appearance of the area.

ii Impact on neighbours 

iii Highway and parking

Impact on the character and appearance of the area.

6.2 This application combines elements from two extant schemes. The layout and siting of the 
buildings (apartment building and detached garages) is similar to that approved under 15/03090.  
The design, layout and proportions of the apartment building (above ground), are all very similar to 
that approved under 16/01680, but without the basement car parking.  Other differences relate to 
fenestration detailing on the front, side and rear elevations, and column details on the rear 
elevation.   It is important to note that the building is no taller, wider or deeper than the building 
approved under 16/01680. 

6.3 The applicant has submitted amended plans (on 12 June 2017) to accurately show how the 
elongated roof lights in the side elevations serving kitchen/dining/living area relate to the roof slope 
and to show the size of the first floor side en-suite bathrooms windows reduced in length.  The 
applicants have also reduced the angle of pitch on the garage roofs so as to provide fully hipped 
roofs, rather than a crown roofs.  

6.4 It is noted on the previous application 15/03090, there was fairly bulky parapet wall detailing above 
the garage doors and a pitched roof behind it (approximate height 4.7 metres).  It is considered that 
the proposed garages (without a parapet) and fully hipped roof measuring approximately 5 metres 
to the peak, would not appear any more bulky in the street scene, than the previously approved 
garages with parapet. 

6.5 It is considered that the proposed new apartment building in combination with the two double 
garages is acceptable in terms of the character and appearance of this area.   The Inspector who 
determined the appeal for 15/03090 commented in paragraph 10 of the decision notice 
commented:  ‘… garages prominently sited in front of the various types of residential buildings in 
this part of the street scene are part of the character of the area and therefore their inclusion within 
this scheme would not stand out as a departure from this pattern of development.’  

14

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning


6.6 It is noted that the application for 6 x 3-bedroom flats and garages proposed under 
12/01490/FULL, which was refused and dismissed on appeal,  provided much larger garages and 
much more of the open central parking forecourt would have been readily visible from Charters 
Road frontage in that proposal. 

6.7 The applicants have submitted an amended layout drawing to show existing trees along the 
Charters Road frontage retained.  These trees were omitted from the originally submitted drawings. 
These trees are covered by an area Tree Preservation Order. The retention of these trees is 
important in order to retain the character of this ‘Leafy Residential Suburb’, townscape. 

6.8 The removal of 4 Western Red Cedars along the side (south eastern) boundary and replacement 
with new Western Red Cedars is considered acceptable. 

Impact on neighbouring properties

6.9 It is considered that the impact on neighbouring properties would be acceptable. Given there are 
extant permissions for both the apartment building and detached garages on this site, it is 
considered that it would be difficult to justify a reason for refusal based on the impact on the on 
neighbouring properties. 

6.10 This current proposal proposes full length roof lights approximately 0.76 above internal floor level 
in the side elevations – serving kitchen, living, dining areas. This will allow more light to these 
habitable areas.  The previous application 16/01680/FULL proposed smaller/higher level roof 
lights, in similar relative positions.  Nevertheless, it is considered that these full length roof lights 
would not give rise to additional levels of overlooking or loss of privacy to the properties on either 
side, such that would warrant refusal of the application on those grounds.  It is noted that no 
objection was raised from neighbours on either side. 

Highway and parking considerations.

6.11 In highway terms there are no material differences between this application and planning 
application number 15/03090, that was allowed at appeal.  The Highway Authority 
recommends conditions, as per the Inspector’s appeal decision.  See conditions 5 -11 in 
section 10 below.  Standard highway informatives are also suggested – see informatives 
1-3 in section 10. 

6.12 Charters Road is a local distributor road that is subject to a 30mph speed limit, which has its 
access off the A30 London Road and the A330 Devenish Road. On street parking is prohibited 
between the hours of 8am and 6pm, from Mondays to Fridays.  

6.13 To comply with the Authority’s maximum parking standard, currently set at 2 spaces per dwelling 
the scheme would need to provide 12 spaces. These 12 spaces are provided by the 2 x double 
garages and the 8 surface parking spaces. The scheme has the potential to generate between 36 
and 48 vehicular trips per day.

6.14 The site is 0.4 miles (640 metres) from Sunningdale Train Station.  In line with the Council’s 
adopted Parking Strategy, a site that is within 800 metres of a train station with a regular half 
hourly or better train service is considered to be an accessible location.  There are also shops 
and services within walking distance of the application site in Sunningdale. The parking provision 
of 2 spaces per dwelling is the maximum standard for areas of poor accessibility.  It is noted in 
the adopted Council’s Parking Strategy, that the maximum parking requirement in an area of 
good accessibility is 1 space per dwelling.  Therefore, the current proposal 17/01066  for  12 
spaces meets the maximum standard for areas of poor accessibility, with 2 spaces per 3-
bedroom apartment. 

6.15 It is noted that the approved application 14/01846 (for 4 x 4-bedroom houses) provided only 1 
space per dwelling - complying with the maximum standard for areas of good accessibility. It is 
noted that there are parking restrictions on the road between 8am-6pm week days (yellow lines), 
so the potential for on-street parking in this area is limited.

15



Other Material Considerations

Housing Land Supply

6.16 Paragraphs 7 and 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) set out that there will 
be a presumption in favour of Sustainable Development.  Paragraph 49 of the NPPF states that 
housing applications should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development, and that relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be 
considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a 5 year supply of 
deliverable housing sites.

6.17 It is acknowledged that this scheme would make a contribution to the Borough’s housing stock 
and it is the view of the Local Planning Authority that the socio-economic benefits of the 
additional dwelling(s) would also weigh in favour of the development.

6.18 The conditions imposed on the previous decision 15/03090 have been repeated on this current 
application (see section 10 below).  The condition on archaeology (see condition 12 in section 
10) has been reworded reflect the details approved under a recent conditions application.  

7. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

7.1 A section 73 Variation application which would not have a larger floor area than the original 
scheme approved under 15/03090 in August 2016, would not attract CIL payments. The floor 
space of the this current scheme and previous scheme approved under 15/03090 are very 
similar.  The applicant has been requested to submit a CIL - Additional Information Form and to 
verify the floor space figures for both schemes. 

7.2 CIL will be charged on any additional floorspace at a rate of £240 per square metres. Final 
figures will need to be agreed by the Council’s CIL officers. 

8. CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

8.1 13 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

8.2 No letters were received from neighbours either  supporting or objecting to the application, 

Statutory consultees

Consultee Comment
Where in the 
report this is 
considered

Parish 
Council 

Council strongly objects to this variation to application and 
will be calling to WRDCP. The council does not accept that 
this is a variation to an existing permitted development as 
the drawings submitted show substantial and material 
changes to the permitted development. The roof profile of 
the building is now shown as extending the main ridge; 
removal of chimneys; larger balconies; larger dormers in the 
roof; removal of the trees to the front of the property to name 
a few. The council request that this variation be refused and 
the applicant invited to submit a full application for the 
proposed drawings attached 

See main report 
paragraphs 1.4 
and paragraphs 
6.1- 6.8  in main 
report.

Council’s 
Tree Office 

There don’t appear to be any changes to the layout that 
would affect trees. However, the layout shows  2 new 
Western red cedars to replace others due to be removed.  
The Tree Officer would also  like to see new tree planting in 
the front garden, in the space between the garages and the 

Noted.  A 
landscaping 
condition is to be 
imposed.   See 
condition 4 in 
Section 10.

16



front boundary. If the tree planting does not take place, then 
the built form cannot be adequately softened when viewed 
from the road and the local character ‘Leafy residential 
suburbs’ would be compromised.

A full landscaping scheme should be submitted including 
details of species, positions, stock type, sizes, and 
maintenance to ensure establishment. Quality standards for 
stock, plant handling and planting must be referred to. Scots 
pine, Sweet chestnut, English oak, Silver birch and Holly 
should be included as they are appropriate for the soil type 
and character of the area.

Highways No objection subject to conditions and informatives.  See conditions 
5-11 in Section 
10 and 
informatives 1-3 
in Section 10. 

Consultee Comment
Where in the 
report this is 
considered

SPAE Under normal circumstances there is rarely a need for SPAE 
to comment or object to a vary a planning application.  There 
is a complex history of refusals and appeals. Changes 
proposed are significant and cannot be regarded as minor 
alterations of the type normally expected to be seen in a 
variation application.

Changes include: Change to roof profile extension of main 
ridge.  Removal of chimney stacks; introduction of much 
larger central gable entrance bay on front elevation;  larger 
balconies and relocated balconies on front elevation; larger 
FF balconies on rear elevation and larger second floor 
dormers; repositioned and larger windows in side elevations; 
changers to garages – removal of pediment and introduction 
of hipped roof. 

This needs a full application. 

Noted.  See 
paragraph 1.4 
and 6.1 -6.10 of 
main report.

9. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

 Appendix A - Site location plan and site layout
 Appendix B – plan and elevation drawings

10. CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED.

^CR;;
 1 The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of the 

permission for 15/03090 (i.e. 28 October 2016). 
Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
(as amended). 

 2 No development shall take place until details and samples of the materials to be used in the 
17



construction of the external surfaces of the building hereby permitted have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy  DG1, H10, H11. 
NP/DG3

 3 The erection of fencing for the protection of any retained tree shall be undertaken in accordance 
with the approved plans and particulars submitted with 15/03090,  i.e. Arboriculatural Method 
Statement Rev B dated 13-8-2015 and tree protection plan KEB 18037-03C  before any 
equipment, machinery or materials are brought on to the site for the purposes of the 
development, and shall be maintained until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have 
been removed from the site. Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance 
with this condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any 
excavation be made, without the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect trees that contribute to the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy - 
Local Plan N6.

 4 No development shall take place and no trees or hedging shall be removed until full details of 
both hard and soft landscaping works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority. All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details and prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in 
accordance with a programme agreed with the local planning authority. Any trees or plants which 
within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of 
similar size and species.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area.  This detail is required prior to 
commencement because the landscaping should be considered in the overall design of the 
scheme. Relevant Policy - N6.

 5 No part of the development shall be occupied until a refuse bin storage area and recycling 
facilities have been provided in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. These facilities shall be kept available for use 
in association with the development at all times.
Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate facilities that allow it to be 
serviced in a manner which would not adversely affect the free flow of traffic and highway safety 
and to ensure the sustainability of the development. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T5, DG1.

 6 No part of the development shall be occupied until covered and secure cycle parking facilities 
have been provided in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the local planning authority. These facilities shall thereafter be kept available for the 
parking of cycles in association with the development at all times.
Reason:  To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to 
encourage the use of alternative modes of transport. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T7, DG1

 7 No entrance gates shall be installed unless they are set back a minimum distance of at least five 
metres from the highway boundary or seven metres from the nearside edge of the carriageway 
of the adjoining highway and hung so that the gates can only open inwards.
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant  Policies - Local 
Plan T5, DG1.

 8 No part of the development shall be occupied until vehicle parking spaces have been provided in 
accordance with the approved drawing. The spaces shall be retained for parking in association 
with the development.
Reason:  To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to 
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the free flow of traffic and 
to highway safety. Relevant Policies - Local Plan P4, DG1.

 9 No part of the development shall be occupied until the access has been constructed in 
accordance with the approved drawing. The access shall thereafter be retained.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. Relevant Policy - T5.

18



10 The garages hereby permitted shall be kept available at all times for the parking of motor 
vehicles by the occupants of the apartments and for no other purpose.
Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to 
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the free flow of traffic and 
to highway safety. Relevant Policies - Local Plan P4, DG1.

11 No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved Statement shall be 
adhered to throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for: I. the parking of 
vehicles and necessary facilities for site operatives and visitors; II. manoeuvring of vehicles 
(including cranes) within the site; and III. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 
development.
Reason  In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local 
Plan T5.

12 The development shall be undertaken  in accordance with the revised written scheme of 
investigation for a programme of archaeological work (prepared by Thames Valley 
Archaeological Services) dated  24th February 2016 - Ref 16e21ra , approved under condition 
application 16/00317/CONDIT.  The agreed programme of archaeological work must be 
completed as evidenced by a report on the results, in order for the condition to be fully 
discharged. 
Reason: The site lies within an area of archaeological potential, specifically relating to Roman 
remains. The Condition will ensure the satisfactory mitigation of the impact of development and 
to record any surviving remains so as to advance our understanding of their significance in 
accordance with national and local plan policy ARCH 2.

13 The hard surfaces shall be made of porous materials and retained thereafter or provision shall 
be made and retained thereafter to direct run-off water from the hard surface to a permeable or 
porous area or surface within the curtilage of the property.
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding and pollution and increase the level of sustainability of the 
development and to comply with Requirement 5 of the Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead 
Sustainable Design & Construction Supplementary Planning Document.

14 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans 
listed below.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved 
particulars and plans.

Informatives 

 1 The Streetcare Services Manager at Tinkers Lane Depot Tinkers Lane Windsor SL4 4LR tel: 
01628 796801 should be contacted for the approval of the access construction details and to 
grant a licence before any work is carried out within the highway. A formal application should be 
made allowing at least 4 weeks' notice to obtain details of underground services on the 
applicant's behalf.

 2 The attention of the applicant is drawn to Section 59 of the Highways Act 1980 which enables 
the Highway Authority to recover expenses due to extraordinary traffic.

 3 No builders materials, plant or vehicles related to the implementation of the development should 
be parked/stored on the public highway so as to cause an obstruction at any time.

19



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A  

17/01066 – The Little House, Charters Road, Sunningdale  

 

 

 

 

 

 

21



APPENDIX B  - 17/01066  - The Little House  

Proposed site layout 

 

 

22



APPENDIX B – 17/01066 – The Little House  

Proposed front elevation 

 

 

 

23



APPENDIX B – 17/01066 – The Little House 

Proposed rear elevation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24



APPENDIX B – 17/01066 – The Little House 

Proposed side elevation 

 

 

 

25



APPENDIX B – 17/01066 – The Little House  

Proposed side elevation 

 

 

 

26



APPENDIX B – 17/01066 – The Little House 

 

Section of elongated roof light 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27



APPENDIX B – 17/01066 – The Little House  

Garage details  

 

 

 

 

28



Appeal Decision Report

22 April 2017 - 19 June 2017

WINDSOR RURAL

Appeal Ref.: 17/60018/REF Planning Ref.: 16/01991/VAR PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/17/
3166776

Appellant: Mr Mark Hendy Shanly Homes Limited 21 The Crescent Leatherhead KT22 8DY
Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse
Description: Redevelopment to provide 8 houses following demolition of existing dwellings. Amended 

design to planning permission 13/00974 as approved under planning permission 14/02408 
without complying with conditions 14 (vehicle parking and turning space), 21 (arboricultural 
method statement) to amend the wording

Location: Former Hunters Lodge And 1 And 2 Ascot Lodge London Road Ascot  
Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 23 May 2017

Main Issue: The Inspector considered that a precautionary approach was required because damage to 
the tree roots could generally speaking not be undone, and if this occurred, harm would be 
caused to trees which make an important contribution to the character of the area. The 
Inspector also stated that the parking space proposed to be located in front of plot 2 was 
better located than others, but from the evidence submitted it was not clear whether its 
retention could be accepted without harm to nearby trees.

Appeal Ref.: 17/60019/REF Planning Ref.: 16/02489/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/16/
3166229

Appellant: Mr G Silverthorne c/o Agent: Mr  Paul Dickinson Paul Dickinson And Associates Highway 
House Lower Froyle GU34 4NB

Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse
Description: Detached dwelling.
Location: Land Adjacent 84 Beech Hill Road Ascot  
Appeal Decision: Allowed Decision Date: 31 May 2017

Main Issue: The Inspector concluded that there are no matters that significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits of the proposal when assessed against the LP and NP. The proposal 
complies with the Framework without the need to consider of the tilted planning balance due 
to any shortfall in 5 year housing supply.

29

Agenda Item 5



Appeal Ref.: 17/60026/REF Planning Ref.: 16/00531/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/17/3
166697

Appellant: Mr Mike Guard Wentworth Homes Wentworth House 23 The Causeway Staines Middlesex 
TW18 3AQ

Decision Type: Committee Officer Recommendation: Application Permitted
Description: Two detached houses with rooms in roof and integrated garages following demolition of 

existing dwelling.
Location: Lynwood Chase Devenish Lane Sunningdale Ascot SL5 9QU 
Appeal Decision: Allowed Decision Date: 23 May 2017

Main Issue: The Inspector considered that due to the scale, height, design and siting of the properties 
within their plots, the significant set back from the lane and side boundaries and the retention 
of most trees, the proposal would not adversely affect the sense of spaciousness in the area 
and therefore would not give rise to a materially different character. The Inspector 
consequently concluded that the proposal would not result in material harm to the character 
and appearance of the surrounding area. As such the scheme would comply with the Royal 
Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan (2003) (LP) Policies DG1 and H11 which 
both include seeking development that would be compatible with the local character of an 
area.

Appeal Ref.: 17/60029/REF Planning Ref.: 16/03400/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/17/3
167767

Appellant: Mr J Thomas c/o Agent: Mr Nick Griffin Griffin Planning Consultancy Ltd 63 Pevensey Way 
Frimley Camberley Surrey GU16 9UU

Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse
Description: Two storey front/side extension
Location: Chartwood 8 Hancocks Mount Ascot SL5 9PQ 
Appeal Decision: Allowed Decision Date: 13 June 2017

Main Issue: The proposal would involve construction within the RPA's of T1 and T4, however trench works 
have revealed limited rooting and root incursion. As there would be minimal incursion into the 
RPA's of the mentioned trees, an extensive grassed area within the appeal site that would 
sustain the majority of the remaining tree roots, a significant zone of ground protection around 
trees T1, T3 and T4 to safeguard their roots, and the fact that the loss of tree T2 would not 
materially harm the character and appearance of the area. it is considered that the proposed 
extension, subject to conditions, would accord with the provisions of the development plan, 
saved policies DG1 and N6 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 
1999 (incorporating alterations adopted in June 2003). These policies, amongst other things, 
seek to ensure development which is sympathetic to local areas and to protect existing trees. 
For the same reasons the proposal is in conformity with policy NP/EN2 of the Ascot, 
Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan 2011-2026 that also promotes the retention 
and protection of existing trees.  Condition:  In addition to the standard 3 year time limitation 
for commencement of development, the Inspector imposed a condition requiring compliance 
with approved plans for the avoidance of doubt. A condition requiring the use of matching 
materials is appropriate to safeguard the character and appearance of the area. In the interest 
of protecting retained trees during the course of development, the Inspector included 
conditions stipulating adherence to specified protection measures. A final condition enables 
the provision of a replacement tree, to safeguard the character of the area, if a tree indicated 
for retention dies within 5 years of commencement of development.

30



Appeal Ref.: 17/60031/REF Planning Ref.: 16/01658/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/17/
3169237

Appellant: Ms Nita Juj And Mr Malcolm Booker c/o Agent: Mr Chris Watts Maze Planning Ltd 1 Rooks 
Close Welwyn Garden City Herts AL8 6JT

Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse
Description: Part single, part two storey side and rear extension and partial demolition of porch.
Location: Little Murtle Sunninghill Road Sunninghill Ascot SL5 7DA 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 4 May 2017

Main Issue: The Planning Inspector considered that there would be considerable pressure from the future 
occupants of the extended dwelling to either fell or cut it back the Red Oak tree. The loss of 
the tree would be materially harmful to the character and appearance of the surrounding 
area. Such harm would clearly outweigh the benefits for the Appellant and their family that 
would result from the proposed extension and would fail to meet the wider public interest, in 
terms of the NPPF. For these reasons the proposal is considered to be contrary to policies 
DG1 and N6 of the Local Plan, policy NP/EN2 of the Ascot, Sunninghill and Sunningdale 
Neighbourhood Plan and the NPPF.

Appeal Ref.: 17/60042/REF Planning Ref.: 17/00044/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/17/
3172564

Appellant: Mr And Mrs K Davies c/o Agent: Mr Christopher Arden Christopher Arden Chartered 
Architects 11 Galton Road Ascot SL5 0BP 

Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse
Description: Single storey front extension following demolition of existing front extension and replace 

existing glazed roof with flat roof.
Location: 192 Chobham Road Sunningdale Ascot SL5 0JA 
Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 15 June 2017

Main Issue: The Inspector noted that the occupiers of No 194 did not object and agrees with the Council 
that there would be no undue loss of light caused.  The Inspector concluded that the 
proposal would unacceptably harm the living conditions at No 194 due to the impact on 
outlook from that property.  The proposal therefore conflicts with the aims of Policy H14 of 
the RBWM Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework, to ensure that 
extensions do not significantly affect the amenities of neighbouring properties and to secure 
a good standard of amenity for all.

31



Planning Appeals Received

21 April 2017 - 19 June 2017

WINDSOR RURAL

The appeals listed below have been received by the Council and will be considered by the Planning Inspectorate.  
Further information on planning appeals can be found at https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/  Should you wish 
to make comments in connection with an appeal, please use the PIns reference number and write to the relevant 
address, shown below.  

Enforcement appeals:  The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/23 Hawk Wing, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square, 
Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN or email teame1@pins.gsi.gov.uk 

Other appeals:  The Planning Inspectorate Room 3/10A Kite Wing Temple Quay House 2 The Square Bristol BS1 
6PN or email teamp13@pins.gsi.gov.uk 

Ward:
Parish: Old Windsor Parish
Appeal Ref.: 17/60040/NONDET Planning Ref.: 15/04081/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/16/3

165223
Date Received: 21 April 2017 Comments Due: 26 May 2017
Type: Non-determination Appeal Type: Hearing
Description: Erection of a block of 8 x residential units with semi-basement parking and landscaping, 

following demolition of existing office and flats
Location: The Boatyard 105 Straight Road Old Windsor Windsor SL4 2SE 
Appellant: Mr S Rye - Simon Rye Pension Fund c/o Agent: Mr Paul Uttley FORM-Architecture And 

Planning Hersham Place 41 - 61 Molesey Road Hersham Walton-On-Thames Surrey KT12 
4RZ

Ward:
Parish: Sunningdale Parish
Appeal Ref.: 17/60042/REF Planning Ref.: 17/00044/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/17/

3172564
Date Received: 2 May 2017 Comments Due: Not Applicable
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Householder
Description: Single storey front extension following demolition of existing front extension and replace 

existing glazed roof with flat roof.
Location: 192 Chobham Road Sunningdale Ascot SL5 0JA 
Appellant: Mr And Mrs K Davies c/o Agent: Mr Christopher Arden Christopher Arden Chartered 

Architects 11 Galton Road Ascot SL5 0BP 

Ward:
Parish: Sunninghill And Ascot Parish
Appeal Ref.: 17/60045/REF Planning Ref.: 16/03771/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/17/3

172618
Date Received: 3 May 2017 Comments Due: 7 June 2017
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation
Description: Siting of storage container in car park (retrospective)
Location: Dog And Partridge 92 Upper Village Road Ascot SL5 7AQ 
Appellant: Mr Tomasz Szymkowicz Dog And Partridge 92 Upper Village Road Ascot SL5 7AQ 

Ward:
Parish: Sunninghill And Ascot Parish
Appeal Ref.: 17/60046/NONDET Planning Ref.: 17/00297/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/17/

32

https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/
mailto:teame1@pins.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:teamp13@pins.gsi.gov.uk


3172740
Date Received: 3 May 2017 Comments Due: 7 June 2017
Type: Non-determination Appeal Type: Written Representation
Description: Double storey rear extension
Location: Wentworth And Associates White Hart House 9 Silwood Road Ascot SL5 0PY 
Appellant: Mr Dale Greenhead c/o Agent: Mr Kevin Gill Planning 4 Property Avondale Barrack Path 

Woking Surrey GU21 8UA

Ward:
Parish: Sunningdale Parish
Appeal Ref.: 17/60048/REF Planning Ref.: 16/02810/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/17/3

169962
Date Received: 3 May 2017 Comments Due: 7 June 2017
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation
Description: Erection of a detached five bedroom dwelling with attached garage.
Location: Land At Priory Lodge Priory Road Sunningdale Ascot  
Appellant: Mr G Scott c/o Agent: Mr Graham Sturdy Surrey Planning And Design Ltd 19 Station Road 

Addlestone KT15 2AL

Ward:
Parish: Old Windsor Parish
Appeal Ref.: 17/60054/REF Planning Ref.: 16/03142/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/17/3

174561
Date Received: 1 June 2017 Comments Due: 6 July 2017
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation
Description: Erection of a pair of 3 bedroom semi-detached houses with associated parking and 

landscaping, following demolition of all existing buildings.
Location: Rosedale 54 Albany Road Old Windsor Windsor SL4 2QA 
Appellant: Jordan Construction Limited c/o Agent: Boyer Planning Wokingham Boyer Planning 

Crowthorne House Nine Mile Ride Wokingham RG40 3GZ

Ward:
Parish: Old Windsor Parish
Appeal Ref.: 17/60057/REF Planning Ref.: 16/03741/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/17/

3173231
Date Received: 8 June 2017 Comments Due: Not Applicable
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Householder
Description: Proposed dropped kerb
Location: 50 Straight Road Old Windsor Windsor SL4 2RX 
Appellant: Miss Heidie Grech c/o Agent: Mr Ken Marshall Marshall Associates Honyash Curls Lane 

Maidenhead Berkshire SL6 2QF

33



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

35

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Planning Applications (decision)
	28June2017WRural
	APPENDIX A B - 17-01066

	5 Essential Monitoring Reports (Monitoring)
	7 Minutes of Previous Meeting

